25/23/TMH

25/24/TMH

25/25/TMH

LYME REGIS TOWN COUNCIL

TOWN MANAGEMENT AND HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY 24 SEPTEMBER 2025

Present

Chairman: Clir M. Ellis

Members: Clir C. Aldridge, Clir G. Caddy, Clir S. Cockerell, Clir P. Evans, CliIr
S. Larcombe, CliIr P. May, ClIr C. Reynolds, Clir G. Stammers, CliIr
A. Wood

Officers: A. Mullins (assistant town clerk), S. O’Connell (operations

manager), J. Wright (town clerk)
Public Forum
S. Ashwell

S. Ashwell said she frequently used the 114 steps from Charmouth Road car park to
the church and sea wall and felt they needed improving. She was aware they were the
responsibility of Dorset Council (DC) but she was conscious that the state of the steps
affected how residents and visitors saw the town. She felt it was appropriate to raise the
issue with this committee after consulting the deputy town clerk. She had highlighted to
DC the issue of overgrown vegetation and the unsafe condition of the steps and one of
the rangers had responded to her. The ranger had advised her there were external
funds available to improve parts of the South West Coast Path but the fund was
oversubscribed. She suggested some joint funding from the town council could make
all the difference and be a win-win. She felt by raising this opportunity with the
committee, it would be possible to identify funding to support DC in improving what she
considered to be a valuable asset for the town and visitors. She believed it would be a
positive achievement for the town council if a way could be found to make the steps and
handrails safer and more welcoming.

Clir M. Ellis asked if S. Ashwell had brought the matter to the attention of the DC ward
member.

S. Ashwell said she felt this was a local issue, as well as a DC issue, so she wanted to
raise it with the town council.

Apologies

Clir G. Caddy — illness
Clir N. Hampton-Rumbold — holiday

Minutes

Proposed by Clir C. Reynolds and seconded by Clir A. Wood, the minutes of the
previous meeting held on 2 July 2025 were ADOPTED.

Cllr G. Stammers arrived at 7.06pm.

24/09/2025, pg 1



25/26/TMH

25/27/TMH

25/28/TMH

25/29/TMH

25/30/TMH

25/31/TMH

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Clir P. May declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 13, Request for Additional
Parking Restrictions in Mill Lane, as he was a trustee of the Town Mill and would not
vote.

Dispensations

There were none.

Matters arising from the minutes of the Town Management and Highways
Committee meeting held on 2 July 2025

Use of the Former Lister Room (now Terrace Café) — Outside Seating and
Licensing Requests

A member asked why there were problems with talking to the tenants about the
requests.

The operations manager said some discussions had taken place but further talks were
needed.

Update Report

The Three Cups

A member asked if officers could contact Palmers’ agent again to keep the pressure
on them. It was noted the last time the council met with the agent, he said they were
very close to securing a partner to develop the site with but this was now several
months ago.

The town clerk said he would make sure the deputy town clerk kept the pressure on.

X51/53 Winter Timetable

The town clerk said First Bus had confirmed it would reinstate the winter timetable but
had not confirmed when this would happen.

Harbour Store

A member asked if biodiesel, which was stored at the Harbour Store, was being used
in council vehicles yet.

The operations manager confirmed biodiesel was being used in council vehicles.
Town Management and Highways Committee — Objectives

Members noted the report.

Budget Proposals 2026-27

A member suggested a sensory educational garden for the area below the outdoor gym,
as discussed by the Gardens Working Group.

24/09/2025, pg 2



25/32/TMH

25/33/TMH

25/34/TMH

A member asked if more money was required in the budget to deal with the lynch and
if further funding was needed for the town bus.

The town clerk said there was £7k in the 2025-26 budget for the Ilynch and a further £5k
was suggested for 2026-27, but this had been missed out of the suggestions and would
be added in.

The operations manager said no further funding was needed for the town bus.
A member asked why £150k was needed for refurbishment of the Jane Austen Gardens.

The operations manager said as it was an area of historic instability, it was unknown
what might happen if works took place, but the figure could reduce depending on what
was found.

Future Use of Adopted Telephone Kiosk at Bell Cliff
Members agreed a book exchange would be a good use for the telephone kiosk.

It was also suggested useful telephone numbers could be displayed in the kiosk. The
town clerk said this information could go on noticeboards where it was more visible.

Proposed by ClIr S. Larcombe and seconded by Clir P. May, members agreed to
RECOMMEND TO FULL COUNCIL to agree the decommissioned BT telephone kiosk
located at Providence Place/Bell Cliff is re-purposed as a book exchange, ensuring all
suggestions comply with the contractual obligations and restrictions outlined in the
adoption agreement with British Telecommunications plc.

Memorial Tree Sculpture

Members liked the idea of a memorial tree sculpture as it would help reduce the number
of people on the waiting list for a memorial tree or bench and would fit in well with the
sculpture trail in the gardens.

It was noted that although it would involve initial expenditure to buy the sculpture, there
would be an income from the purchase of memorial leaves.

Members discussed which size would be preferable and agreed to put forward the
maximum amount of £25,000 as a potential objective for 2026-27, but any final decision
could be made at a later date if the project was taken forward.

Proposed by Clir P. May and seconded by Clir C. Reynolds, members agreed to
RECOMMEND TO FULL COUNCIL to put forward the idea of a memorial tree as a
potential objective for 2026-27 with a budget of £25k.

Changes to the Lyme Link Bus Service Route
The operations manager said the suggestions from the volunteers for changes to the
route were based on comments from passengers and the convenience of stopping at

the stops.

A member said when the bus very occasionally didn’t run, a message was posted on
Facebook but this wasn’t seen by most of the passengers, so it was suggested a text

24/09/2025, pg 3



25/35/TMH

25/36/TMH

25/37/TMH

message group was set up for regular passengers where these messages could be
communicated.

Members discussed whether passengers should be asked for their views on route
changes, although there was concern this would undermine the volunteers.

A member was concerned that some people were still unaware of the service and
suggested maybe people in Uplyme were not making use of it for this reason.

There was also concern about the perception if the Uplyme stop was withdrawn,
although it was pointed out there was still a public bus that ran between Lyme Regis
and Uplyme so people still had an option.

It was recognised the service could continually evolve as and where the need arose.

The town clerk encouraged members to trust what the volunteers were telling them and
to consider reviewing the service again in another six months and thereafter to commit
to an annual review, rather than reacting to individual requests.

The operations manager said more volunteers would be beneficial so it needed to be
advertised continually. It was agreed another article would go in the Lyme Living
magazine.

Proposed by Clir A. Wood and seconded by Clir P. May, members agreed to
RECOMMEND TO FULL COUNCIL to agree to the proposed route changes for the
Lyme Link bus service, specifically the removal of Uplyme from the route, with a further
review in six months.

Request for Additional Parking Restrictions in Mill Lane

A member said they understood one of the residential properties in Mill Lane had paid
for a parking space outside the house, therefore double yellow lines couldn’t be installed
there.

The town clerk suggested the onus should be placed back on the Town Mill to determine
the status of that piece of land.

It was agreed the Town Mill would be asked to clarify issues of ownership and historical
arrangements before the council would consider supporting the request for additional
parking restrictions.

Beach Signs and Flags — Pollution Risk Notices

It was noted it was DC'’s responsibility to display the notices but currently it wasn’t being
done.

Digital signage was suggested so the notices could be managed remotely.

The operations manager said this could be suggested at the Harbour Consultative
Group.

It was noted it was now the end of the bathing season so it wasn’t an immediate issue.

External Works’ Budget Performance, 1 April — 31 August 2025
24/09/2025, pg 4



25/38/TMH

A member queried the cost of biodiesel at £8k and asked why ordinary diesel was not
being used.

The town clerk said biodiesel was 20p a litre more expensive than originally thought.
He said the expenditure possibly included the cost of installing the tank and he would
check this and let members know.

The operations manager said the tank had been filled up once and would probably need
to be filled up once more before the end of the financial year so the overspend would
increase further.

It was noted the moved to biodiesel was agreed to reduce the council’s carbon footprint.

Complaints, Incidents and Compliments

Members noted the high number of dog complaints and felt the signage on the beach
wasn’t sufficient to inform people of the rules. A simple ‘no dogs’ sign was suggested.

The town clerk said DC was responsible for this signage but the town council could look
into putting up its own.

A member added a compliment for the town bus and the volunteers, who had been very
thoughtful following a recent bereavement.

The meeting closed at 8.16pm.

24/09/2025, pg 5



